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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-Q
(Mark One)
☒ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2021
or
☐ TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from ________________________________________ to _________________________________________
Commission File Number: 001-37997

SACHEM CAPITAL CORP.
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)
New York
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

81-3467779
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.)

698 Main Street, Branford, CT 06405
(Address of principal executive offices)
(203) 433-4736
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code)
(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the
preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past
90 days. ☒ Yes ☐ No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T
(§ 232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files). ☒ Yes ☐ No
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth
company. See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer,” “non-accelerated filer,” “smaller reporting company,” and “emerging growth company” in
Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.
Large accelerated filer ☐
Accelerated filer ☐
Non-accelerated filer ☒
Smaller reporting company ☒
Emerging growth company ☒
If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised
financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act. ☐
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:
Title of each class
Common Shares, par value $.001 per share
7.125% Notes due 2024
6.875% Notes due 2024
7.75% Notes due 2025
7.75% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock,
Liquidation Preference $25.00 per share

Ticker symbol(s)
SACH
SCCB
SACC
SCCC
SACHPRA

☐

Yes

☒

No

Name of each exchange on which registered
NYSE American LLC
NYSE American LLC
NYSE American LLC
NYSE American LLC
NYSE American LLC

As of November 3, 2021, the Issuer had a total of 29,443,218 common shares, $0.001 par value per share, outstanding.
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This quarterly report on Form 10-Q includes forward-looking statements. All statements other than statements of historical facts contained in this
report, including statements regarding our future results of operations and financial position, strategy and plans, and our expectations for future operations,
are forward-looking statements. The words “anticipate,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project,” “plan,” “seek,” “intend,” “believe,” “may,” “might,” “will,”
“should,” “could,” “likely,” “continue,” “design,” and the negative of such terms and other words and terms of similar expressions are intended to identify
forward-looking statements.
We have based these forward-looking statements largely on our current expectations and projections about future events and trends that we believe
may affect our financial condition, results of operations, strategy, short-term and long-term business operations and objectives and financial needs. These
forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties and assumptions. In light of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, the
forward-looking events and circumstances discussed in this report may not occur, and actual results could differ materially and adversely from those
anticipated or implied in the forward-looking statements.
You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in the
forward-looking statements are reasonable, we cannot guarantee future results, level of activity, performance or achievements. In addition, neither we nor
any other person assumes responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of any of these forward-looking statements. We disclaim any duty to update any
of these forward-looking statements after the date of this report to confirm these statements in relationship to actual results or revised expectations.
All forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified in their entirety by these cautionary statements as well as others made in
this report. You should evaluate all forward-looking statements made by us in the context of these risks and uncertainties.
Unless the context otherwise requires, all references in this quarterly report on Form 10-Q to “Sachem Capital,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to
Sachem Capital Corp., a New York corporation.
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PART I.
Item 1.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SACHEM CAPITAL CORP.
BALANCE SHEETS
September 30, 2021
(Unaudited)

Assets
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities
Investment in partnership
Mortgages receivable
Interest and fees receivable
Other receivables
Due from borrowers
Prepaid expenses
Property and equipment, net
Real estate owned
Other deposits
Deferred financing costs, net
Total assets

$

$

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Notes payable (net of deferred financing costs of $4,132,355 and $4,866,058)
Mortgage payable
Line of credit
Accrued dividends payable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other loans
Security deposits held
Advances from borrowers
Deferred revenue
Notes payable
Accrued interest
Total liabilities

$

December 31, 2020
(Audited)

19,242,316
56,080,725
1,804,217
219,963,291
2,705,447
428,391
3,431,015
85,813
2,189,887
6,774,522
291,191
354,936
313,351,751

$

110,394,395
—
30,056,159
—
192,670
—
2,000
10,031,656
3,879,291
37,498
—
154,593,669

$

$

19,408,028
37,293,703
—
155,616,300
1,820,067
67,307
2,025,663
71,313
1,433,388
8,861,609
—
72,806
226,670,184

109,640,692
767,508
28,055,648
2,654,977
372,662
257,845
13,416
1,830,539
2,099,331
54,682
3,344
145,750,644

Commitments and Contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Preferred shares - $.001 par value; 5,000,000 shares authorized; 1,903,000 shares of Series A Preferred
Stock issued and outstanding
Common stock - $.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 28,315,930 and 22,124,801 issued
and outstanding
Paid-in capital
Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Accumulated deficit
Total shareholders’ equity
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

1

1,903

—

28,316
160,279,468
(637,990)
(913,615)
158,758,082
313,351,751

22,125
83,814,376
(25,992)
(2,890,969)
80,919,540
226,670,184

$

Table of Contents

SACHEM CAPITAL CORP.
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(unaudited)
Three Months Ended
September 30,
2021
2020

Revenue:
Interest income from loans
Investment income
Income from partnership investment
Gain (loss) on sale of investment securities
Origination fees
Late and other fees
Processing fees
Rental income (loss), net
Debt Forgiveness
Other income
Total revenue

$

Operating costs and expenses:
Interest and amortization of deferred financing costs
Professional fees
Compensation, fees and taxes
Exchange fees
Other expenses and taxes
Depreciation
General and administrative expenses
Loss on sale of real estate
Impairment loss
Total operating costs and expenses
Net income
Preferred stock dividend
Net income attributable to common shareholders

6,094,165
275,745
35,983
256,418
999,287
202,572
50,230
28,320
—
579,656
8,522,376

$

2,589,847
183,503
771,373
12,603
104,583
20,421
294,981
94,450
150,000
4,221,761
4,300,615
(913,791)
3,386,824

Other comprehensive (loss) gain
Unrealized (loss) gain on investment securities
Comprehensive income
Basic and diluted net income per common share outstanding:
Basic
Diluted
Weighted average number of common shares outstanding:
Basic
Diluted

Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2021
2020

3,473,304
32,483
—
(21,858)
393,097
10,955
37,445
9,593
—
336,789
4,271,808
1,262,278
158,206
500,165
22,713
26,247
15,348
145,251
2,816
—
2,133,024
2,138,784
—
2,138,784

15,307,692
698,556
90,225
212,449
2,348,608
300,471
129,615
23,105
257,845
1,579,885
20,948,451

$

7,541,536
666,431
2,175,603
37,397
149,898
61,286
702,897
111,545
469,000
11,915,593
9,032,858
(932,089)
8,100,769

9,640,387
163,161
—
415,301
1,551,652
46,835
123,568
49,777
—
904,071
12,894,752
3,564,533
400,868
1,232,733
29,986
61,484
46,318
412,677
7,276
495,000
6,250,875
6,643,877
—
6,643,877

$

(500,188)
2,886,636

$

(72,785)
2,065,999

$

(611,998)
7,488,771

$

13,282
6,657,159

$
$

0.12
0.12

$
$

0.10
0.10

$
$

0.32
0.32

$
$

0.30
0.30

27,973,249
27,977,095

22,117,301
22,117,301

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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$

24,968,885
24,972,837

22,117,301
22,117,301
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SACHEM CAPITAL CORP.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(unaudited)
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Beginning balance, July 1, 2021
Issuance of Preferred Stock, net of expenses

Preferred Stock
Shares
Amount
1,700,000 $ 1,700
203,000

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
26,733,213
$ 26,733

203

Issuance of Common Stock, net of expenses

1,582,717

1,583

Stock based compensation

Additional
Paid in
Capital
$ 147,362,456

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss
(137,802)

Accumulated
Deficit
(963,683)

$

Totals
146,289,404

4,849,297

4,849,500

8,003,496

8,005,079

64,219

64,219

Unrealized loss on marketable securities

(500,188)

(500,188)

Dividends paid on Common Stock

(3,336,756)

(3,336,756)

Dividends paid on Preferred Stock

(913,791)

(913,791)

Net income for the period ended September 30,
2021
Balance, September 30, 2021

1,903,000

$ 1,903

28,315,930

$ 28,316

$ 160,279,468

$

(637,990)

4,300,615
(913,615)

$

$

4,300,615
158,758,082

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Beginning balance, July 1, 2020

Preferred Stock
Shares
Amount
— $
—

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
22,117,301
$ 22,117

Stock based compensation

Additional
Paid in
Capital
$ 83,806,169

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss
$
35,189

Accumulated
Deficit
$
584,288

4,107

4,107

Unrealized loss on marketable securities

(72,785)

(72,785)

Dividends Paid
Net income for the period ended September 30,
2020
Balance, September 30, 2020

—

$

—

22,117,301

$ 22,117

$ 83,810,276

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Totals
$ 84,447,763

(37,596)

$

(2,654,076)

(2,654,076)

2,138,784
68,996

2,138,784
$ 83,863,793
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FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2021

Beginning balance, January 1, 2021
Issuance of Preferred Stock, net of expenses

Preferred Stock
Shares
Amount
— $
—
1,903,000

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
22,124,801
$ 22,125

1,903

Issuance of Common Stock, net of expenses
Stock based compensation

Additional
Paid in
Capital
$ 83,814,376

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss
$
(25,992)

Accumulated
Deficit
$ (2,890,969)

$

Totals
80,919,540

45,460,723

45,462,626
30,883,928

6,096,448

6,097

30,877,831

94,681

94

126,538

126,632

Unrealized loss on marketable securities

(611,998)

(611,998)

Dividends paid on Common Stock

(6,123,415)

(6,123,415)

Dividends paid on Preferred Stock

(932,089)

(932,089)

9,032,858
(913,615)

9,032,858
$ 158,758,082

Net income for the period ended September 30,
2021
Balance, September 30, 2021

1,903,000

$ 1,903

28,315,930

$ 28,316

$ 160,279,468

$

(637,990)

$

FOR THE NINE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2020

Beginning balance, January 1, 2020

Preferred Stock
Shares
Amount
— $
—

Common Stock
Shares
Amount
22,117,301
$ 22,117

Issuance of Common Stock, net of expenses
Stock based compensation

Additional
Paid in
Capital
$ 83,856,308

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive
Loss
$
(50,878)

Accumulated
Deficit
$ (1,266,729)

(58,353)

(58,353)

12,321

12,321

Unrealized gain on marketable securities

13,282

13,282

Dividends paid
Net income for the period ended September 30,
2020
Balance, September 30, 2020

—

$

—

22,117,301

$ 22,117

$ 83,810,276

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Totals
$ 82,560,818

(37,596)

$

(5,308,152)

(5,308,152)

6,643,877
68,996

6,643,877
$ 83,863,793
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SACHEM CAPITAL CORP.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW
(unaudited)
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2021
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Amortization of deferred financing costs and bond discount
Write-off of deferred financing costs
Depreciation expense
Stock based compensation
Impairment loss
Loss on sale of real estate
Gain on sale of marketable securities
Debt Forgiveness
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in:
Interest and fees receivable
Other receivables
Due from borrowers
Prepaid expenses
Deposits on property and equipment
(Decrease) increase in:
Accrued interest
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Deferred revenue
Advances from borrowers
Total adjustments

$

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from the sale of investment securities
Purchase of interest in investment partnership, net
Proceeds from sale of real estate owned
Acquisitions of and improvements to real estate owned
Purchase of property and equipment
Security deposits held
Principal disbursements for mortgages receivable
Principal collections on mortgages receivable
Costs in connection with investment activities
NET CASH USED FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net proceeds from line of credit
Repayment of mortgage payable
Principal payments on notes payable
Dividends paid on Common Stock
Dividends paid on Preferred Stock
Financings costs incurred
Proceeds from other loans
Proceeds from issuance of common shares, net of expenses
Proceeds from issuance of Series A Preferred Stock, net of expenses
Gross proceeds from issuance of fixed rate notes
Financings costs incurred in connection with fixed rate notes
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS- BEGINNING OF YEAR
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF PERIOD

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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9,032,858

2020
$

6,643,877

839,418
72,806
61,286
126,538
469,000
111,545
(212,449)
(257,845)

357,497
—
46,318
12,321
495,000
7,276
(415,301)
—

(885,380)
(361,084)
(1,405,352)
(14,500)
—

(180,335)
54,090
(273,202)
(82,082)
(100,530)

(3,344)
(179,992)
1,779,960
8,201,117
8,341,724

77,256
272,574
(91,019)
565,706
745,569

17,374,582

7,389,446

(160,896,229)
141,709,658
(1,804,217)
1,839,977
(333,435)
(817,785)
(11,416)
(154,810,007)

(37,216,177)
25,905,769
—
1,816,522
(1,584,300)
(118,364)
5,616
(68,029,798)

90,463,016
(281,191)
(84,941,629)

37,859,270
—
(41,361,462)

2,000,511
(767,508)
(17,184)
(8,778,392)
(932,089)
(450,651)
—
30,884,022
45,462,626
—
—
67,401,335

12,080,569
(12,296)
(15,303)
(5,308,152)
—
(108,353)
257,845
—
—
14,363,750
(743,908)
20,514,152

(165,712)

(13,457,864)

19,408,028

18,841,937

19,242,316

$

5,384,073
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SACHEM CAPITAL CORP.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW (Continued)
(unaudited)
Nine Months Ended
September 30,
2021
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOWS INFORMATION
Interest paid

$

6,745,109

2020
$

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Real estate acquired in connection with the foreclosure of certain mortgages, inclusive of interest and other fees receivable, during the period ended
September 30, 2020 amounted to $170,383.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2,093,080
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SACHEM CAPITAL CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
1.

The Company
Sachem Capital Corp. (the “Company”), a New York corporation, specializes in originating, underwriting, funding, servicing and managing a
portfolio of first mortgage loans. The Company offers short term (i.e., one to three years), secured, non-banking loans (sometimes referred to as “hard
money” loans) to real estate owners and investors to fund their acquisition, renovation, development, rehabilitation or improvement of properties located
primarily in Connecticut. The properties securing the Company’s loans are generally classified as residential or commercial real estate and are held for
resale or investment. Each loan is secured by a first mortgage lien on real estate and may also be secured with additional collateral, such as other real
estate owned by the borrower or its principals or a pledge of the ownership interests in the borrower by the principals thereof as well as personal
guarantees by the principals of the borrower. The Company does not lend to owner occupants. The Company’s primary underwriting criteria is a
conservative loan to value ratio. In addition, the Company may make opportunistic real estate purchases apart from its lending activities.

2.

Significant Accounting Policies
Unaudited Financial Statements
The accompanying unaudited financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in the United States of America (“GAAP”) for interim financial information. Accordingly, they do not include all the information and footnotes required
by GAAP for complete financial statements. However, in the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals)
considered necessary for a fair presentation have been included. The accompanying unaudited financial statements should be read in conjunction with
the Company’s audited financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 and the notes thereto included in the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K. Results of operations for the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the operating results to be attained in the entire fiscal year.
Consolidations
The consolidated financial statements of the Company include the accounts of all subsidiaries in which the Company has control over significant
operating, financial and investing decisions of the entity. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Management will base the use of estimates on (a) various assumptions that consider its experience,
(b) the Company’s projections regarding future operations and (c) general financial market and local and general economic conditions. Actual amounts
could differ from those estimates.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all demand deposits, cashier’s checks, money market accounts and certificates of deposit with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents at various financial institutions. The combined account
balances typically exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance coverage, and, as a result, there is a concentration of credit risk related to
amounts on deposit. The Company does not believe that the risk is significant.
Allowance for Loan Loss
The Company reviews each loan on a quarterly basis and evaluates the borrower’s ability to pay the monthly interest, the borrower’s likelihood of
executing the original exit strategy and the loan-to-value (LTV) ratio. Based on the analysis, management determines if any provisions for impairment of
loans should be made and whether any loan loss reserves are required.
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SACHEM CAPITAL CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
Fair Value Measurements
The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standard
Codification (“ASC”) 820 are described as follows:
Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets that the Company can
access.
Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology include:
●
●
●
●

quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive markets;
inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; and
inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means.

If the asset or liability has a specified (i.e., contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or
liability.
Level 3 inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.
Property and Equipment
Land and building acquired in December 2016 to serve as the Company’s office facilities is stated at cost. The building is being depreciated using
the straight-line method over its estimated useful life of 40 years. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred.
Impairment of long-lived assets
The Company continually monitors events or changes in circumstances that could indicate carrying amounts of long-lived assets may not be
recoverable. When such events or changes in circumstances occur, the Company assesses the recoverability of long-lived assets by determining whether
the carrying value of such assets will be recovered through undiscounted expected future cash flows. If the total of the undiscounted cash flows is less
than the carrying amount of these assets, the Company recognizes an impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying amount over the fair market
value of the assets.
Deferred Financing Costs
Costs incurred by the Company in connection with public offerings of its unsecured, unsubordinated notes, described in Note 6 - Notes Payable and
Line of Credit-- are being amortized over the term of the respective Notes.
Revenue Recognition
Interest income from the Company’s loan portfolio is earned over the loan period and is calculated using the simple interest method on principal
amounts outstanding. Generally, the Company’s loans provide for interest to be paid monthly in arrears. The Company does not accrue interest income
more than 90 days in arrears. Interest income not accrued at September 30, 2021 and collected prior to the issuance of these financial statements is
included in September 30, 2021 income.
Origination fee revenue, generally 2%- 5% of the original loan principal amount, is collected at loan funding and is recognized ratably over the
contractual life of the loan in accordance with ASC 310.
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SACHEM CAPITAL CORP.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2021
Income Taxes
The Company elected to be taxed as a Real Estate Investment Trust (REIT) for federal income tax purposes when it filed its 2017 federal income tax
return. As a REIT, the Company is required to distribute at least 90% of its taxable income to its shareholders on an annual basis. The Company’s
qualification as a REIT depends on its ability to meet on a continuing basis, through actual investment and operating results, various complex
requirements under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, relating to, among other things, the sources of its income, the composition and
values of its assets, its compliance with the distribution requirements applicable to REITs and the diversity of ownership of its outstanding common
shares. So long as it qualifies as a REIT, the Company, generally, will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on its taxable income distributed to its
shareholders. However, if it fails to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year and does not qualify for certain statutory relief provisions, it will be subject to
U.S. federal income tax at regular corporate rates and may also be subject to various penalties and may be precluded from re-electing REIT status for the
four taxable years following the year during in which it lost its REIT qualification.
The Company follows the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 740-10 “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes”, which prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return
and disclosure required. Under this standard, an entity may only recognize or continue to recognize tax positions that meet a “more likely than not”
threshold. The Company recognizes interest and penalties, if any, related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest expense. The Company has determined
that there are no uncertain tax positions requiring accrual or disclosure in the accompanying financial statements as of September 30, 2021.
Earnings Per Share
Basic and diluted earnings per share are calculated in accordance with FASB ASC 260 “Earnings Per Share”. Under FASB ASC 260, basic
earnings per share is computed by dividing income available to common shareholders by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding
for the period. The computation of diluted earnings per share is similar to basic earnings per share, except that the denominator is increased to include the
potential dilution from the exercise of stock options and warrants for common shares using the treasury stock method. The numerator in calculating both
basic and diluted earnings per common share for each period is the reported net income.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Management does not believe that any recently issued, but not yet effective, accounting standards if currently adopted would have a material effect
on the Company’s financial statements.
3.

Fair Value Measurement
The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the
fair market value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.
The following table sets forth by Level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Company’s assets at fair value as of September 30, 2021:
Level 1

Stocks and ETFs
Fixed and Preferred Securities
Mutual Funds
Total Investments
Real Estate Owned
Investment in Partnership

$
$

15,273,970
3,906,670
36,900,085
56,080,725

Level 2

$

—
—
—
—

Level 3

$

$
$

9

—
—
—
—
6,774,522
1,804,217

Total

$
$
$

15,273,970
3,906,670
36,900,085
56,080,725
6,774,522
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Following is a description of the methodologies used for assets measured at fair value:
Stocks and ETFs: Valued at the closing price reported in the active market on which the individual securities are traded.
Fixed and Preferred Securities: Valued at the closing price reported in the active market on which such securities are traded.
Mutual funds: Valued at the daily closing price reported by the fund. Mutual funds held by the Company are open-end mutual funds that are
registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). These funds are required to publish their daily net asset values and to transact
at that price. The mutual funds held by the Company are deemed to be actively traded.
Real estate owned: The Company estimates fair values of real estate owned using market information such as recent sales contracts, appraisals,
recent sales offers, assessed values or discounted cash value models.
4.

Mortgages Receivable
Mortgages Receivable
The Company offers short-term secured, non-bank loans to real estate owners and investors (also known as “hard money” loans) to fund their
acquisition, renovation, development, rehabilitation or improvement of properties located primarily in Connecticut. The loans are secured by first
mortgage liens on one or more properties owned by the borrower or related parties. In addition, each loan is personally guaranteed by the borrower or its
principals, which guarantees may be collaterally secured as well. The loans are for a term of one to three years. The loans are initially recorded and
carried thereafter, in the financial statements, at cost. Most of the loans provide for monthly payments of interest only (in arrears) during the term of the
loan and a “balloon” payment of the principal on the maturity date.
For the nine-month periods ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the aggregate amounts of loans funded by the Company were$154,810,007 and
$68,029,798, respectively, offset by principal repayments of $90,463,016 and $37,859,270, respectively.
At September 30, 2021, the Company’s portfolio included loans with outstanding principal balances up to approximately$16.7 million, with stated
interest rates ranging from 5.0% to 14.2% and a default interest rate for non-payment of 18%. The Company will extend the term of a loan if, at the time
of the extension, the loan and the borrower satisfy the Company’s underwriting requirements at the time of the extension. The Company treats a loan
extension as a new loan.
Credit Risk
Credit risk profile based on loan activity as of September 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

Mortgages Receivable

September 30, 2021
December 31, 2020

Residential

$
$

135,875,193
112,240,129

Commercial

$
$

57,635,307
33,548,683

Land

$
$

13,478,355
6,111,670

Total
Outstanding
Mortgages

Mixed Use

$
$

12,974,436
3,715,818

$
$

The following are the maturities of mortgages receivable as of September 30:
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025 and thereafter

$

$

10

48,408,254
150,388,034
18,578,880
2,325,000
263,123
219,963,291

219,963,291
155,616,300
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At September 30, 2021, of the 493 mortgage loans in the Company’s portfolio, 17 were the subject of foreclosure proceedings. The aggregate
outstanding balances due on these loans as of September 30, 2021, including unpaid principal, accrued but unpaid interest and borrower fees, was
approximately $6.2 million. In the case of each of these loans, the Company believes the value of the collateral exceeds the total amount due.
At September 30, 2021, we had one borrower whose outstanding loans, in the aggregate principal amount of $22.3 million, represented 10.2% of
our mortgage loan portfolio.
5.

Real Estate Owned
Property purchased for rental or acquired through foreclosure are included on the balance sheet as real estate owned.
As of September 30, 2021, and December 31, 2020, real estate owned totaled $6,774,522 and $8,861,609, respectively. As of September 30, 2021,
real estate owned included $916,325 of real estate held for rental and $5,858,197 of real estate held for sale. In the first nine-months of 2021, the
Company recorded an impairment loss and loss on sale of real estate of $469,000 and $111,545, respectively, compared to an impairment loss and loss
on sale of real estate of $495,000 and $7,276, respectively, in the first nine-months of 2020. For the three-months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020,
the impairment loss was $150,000 and $0, respectively, and loss on sale of real estate was $94,450 and $2,816, respectively.

6.

Notes Payable and Line of Credit
At September 30, 2021, the Company had an aggregate of $110,394,395 of unsecured, unsubordinated notes payable outstanding, net of $4,112,355
of deferred financing costs (collectively, the “Notes”). The Notes are divided into three series:
(i)

Notes having an aggregate principal amount of $23,663,000 bearing interest at 7.125% per annum and maturing June 30, 2024 (“the June
2024 Notes”);

(ii)

Notes having an aggregate principal amount of $34,500,000 bearing interest at 6.875% per annum and maturing December 30, 2024 (the
“December 2024 Notes”); and

(iii)

Notes having an aggregate principal amount of $56,363,750 bearing interest at 7.75% per annum and maturing September 30, 2025 (the
“2025 Notes”).

The Notes were sold in underwritten public offerings, were issued in denomination of $25.00 each and are listed on the NYSE American and trade
under the symbol “SCCB”, “SACC” and “SCCC”, respectively. All the notes were issued at par except for the last tranche of the 2025 Notes, in the
original principal amount of $28 million, which were issued at $24.75 each. Interest on the Notes is payable quarterly on each March 30, June 30,
September 30 and December 30 that they are outstanding. So long as the Notes are outstanding, the Company is prohibited from making distributions in
excess of 90% of its taxable income, incurring any additional indebtedness or purchasing any shares of its capital stock unless it has an “Asset Coverage
Ratio” of at least 150% after giving effect to the payment of such dividend, the incurrence of such indebtedness or the application of the net proceeds, as
the case may be. The Company may redeem the Notes, in whole or in part, without premium or penalty, at any time after their second anniversary of
issuance upon at least 30 days prior written notice to the holders of the Notes. The redemption price will be equal to the outstanding principal amount of
the Notes redeemed plus the accrued but unpaid interest thereon up to, but not including the date of redemption. The June 2024 Notes are currently
callable, the December 2024 Notes will be callable at any time after November 7, 2021 and the 2025 Notes will be callable at any time after September
4, 2022.
Wells Fargo Margin Line of Credit
At September 30, 2021, the Company had a total outstanding balance of $30,056,159 under the margin loan account from Wells Fargo, which is
secured by the Company’s portfolio of short-term securities. The credit line bears interest at a rate equal to 1.75% below the prime rate (1.5% at
September 30, 2021).
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Churchill MRA Funding I LLC Repurchase Financing Facility
On July 21, 2021, the Company consummated a $200 million master repurchase financing facility (“Facility”) with Churchill MRA Funding I LLC
(“Churchill”), a subsidiary of Churchill Real Estate, a vertically integrated real estate finance company based in New York, New York. Under the terms
of the Master Repurchase Agreement entered into in connection with the Facility (the “MRA”), the Company has the right, but not the obligation, to sell
mortgage loans to Churchill, and Churchill has the right, but not the obligation, to purchase those loans. In addition, the Company has the right and, in
some instances the obligation, to repurchase those loans from Churchill. The amount that Churchill will pay for each mortgage loan it purchases will vary
based on the attributes of the loan and various other circumstances. The repurchase price is calculated by applying an interest factor to the purchase price
of the mortgage loan. The Company has also granted Churchill a first priority security interest on the mortgage loans sold to Churchill to secure its
repurchase obligation. The cost of capital under the Facility is equal to the sum of (a) the greater of (i) 0.25% and (ii) the 30-day LIBOR plus (b) 3%-4%,
depending on the aggregate principal amount of the mortgage loans held by Churchill at that time.
The MRA contains other terms and conditions, including representations and warranties, covenants and agreements typically found in these types of
financing arrangements. In addition, the Company has agreed that it will not (A) (i) pay any dividends or make distributions in excess of 90% of its
taxable income, (ii) incur any indebtedness or (iii) purchase any of its capital stock, unless, in any case, it has an asset coverage ratio of at least 150%;
and (B) has unencumbered cash and cash equivalents in an amount equal to or greater than 2.50% of the amount of its repurchase obligations. Churchill
has the right to terminate the Facility at any time upon 180 days prior notice to the Company. The Company then has an additional 180 days after
termination to repurchase all the mortgage loans held by Churchill.
The Company intends to use the proceeds from the Facility to finance the continued expansion of its lending business and for general corporate
purposes. At September 30, 2021, the Company had not pledged any of its loans to Churchill.
7.

Other income
For the three and nine-month periods ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, other income consists of the following:
Three Months
ended September 30,
2021
2020

Income on borrower charges
Lender, modification and extension fees
In-house legal fees
Other income
Total
8.

$

33,291
476,162
69,800
403
$ 579,656

$

46,432
154,175
53,740
82,442
$ 336,789

Nine Months
ended September 30,
2021
2020

$

$

369,169
1,016,468
181,600
12,648
1,579,885

$ 204,964
431,977
156,090
111,040
$ 904,071

Commitments and Contingencies
Origination Fees
Loan origination fees consist of points, generally 2%-5% of the original loan principal. These payments are amortized over the life of the loan for
financial statement purposes.
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Original maturities of deferred revenue are as follows as of:
September 30,

2021
2022
2023
2024
Total

$ 1,279,043
2,501,573
90,574
8,101
$ 3,879,291

In instances in which mortgages are repaid before their maturity date, the balance of any unamortized deferred revenue is recognized in full at the
time of repayment.
Unfunded Commitments
Most loans are funded in full at closing. However, where all or a portion of the loan proceeds are to be used to fund the costs of renovating or
constructing improvements on the property, only a portion of the loan may be funded at closing. At September 30, 2021, the Company’s mortgage loan
portfolio included 157 loans with future funding obligations, in the aggregate principal amount of $61,707,185. Advances under these loans are funded
against requests supported by required documentation (including lien waivers) as and when needed to pay contractors and other costs of construction.
Management estimates that these commitments will be funded over the next 12 months.
Other
In the normal course of its business, the Company is named as a party-defendant because it is a mortgagee having interests in real properties that are
being foreclosed upon, usually because the owner failed to pay property taxes. The Company actively monitors these actions and, in all cases, believes
there remains sufficient value in the subject property to assure that no loan impairment exists. At September 30, 2021, there were eight such properties,
representing approximately $810,000 in mortgages receivable.
9.

Related Party Transactions
In the ordinary course of business, the Company may originate, fund, manage and service loans to shareholders. The underwriting process on these
loans is consistent with Company policy. The terms of such loans, including the interest rate, income, origination fees and other closing costs are the
same as those applicable to loans made to unrelated third parties in the portfolio. As of September 30, 2021, and 2020, loans to known shareholders
totaled $13,200,972 and $4,626,665, respectively. Interest income earned on these loans for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 totaled
$573,446 and $397,293, respectively, and for the three months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 totaled $252,050 and $129,956, respectively.
The wife of the Company’s chief executive officer is employed by the Company in the accounting and finance department. For the nine-month
periods ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, she received $85,634 and $75,000, respectively, as compensation from the Company. For the three months
ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the corresponding amounts were $29,250 and $25,000, respectively.

10. Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash, cash equivalents, investments
in securities and mortgage loans.
The Company maintains its cash and cash equivalents with various financial institutions. Accounts at the financial institution are insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000.
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The Company is potentially subject to concentration of credit risk in its investment securities. Currently, all of its investment securities, which
include common stocks, preferred stock, corporate bonds and mutual funds, are held at Wells Fargo Advisors. Wells Fargo Advisors is a member of the
Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC). SIPC protects clients against the custodial risk of a member investment firm becoming insolvent by
replacing missing securities and cash up to $500,000, including up to $250,000 in cash, per client in accordance with SIPC rules.
The Company makes loans that are secured by first mortgage liens on real property located primarily in Connecticut (approximately59.51%),
Florida (approximately 21.09%) and New York (approximately 10.69%). This concentration of credit risk may be affected by changes in economic or
other conditions of the particular geographic area.
Credit risks associated with the Company’s mortgage loan portfolio and related interest receivable are described in Note 4 - Mortgages Receivable.
11.

Equity Offerings
On April 9, 2021, the Company filed a prospectus supplement to its Form S-3 Registration Statement covering the sale of up to $43,636,250 of its
common shares in an “at-the market” offering, which is ongoing. During the nine-month period ended September 30, 2021, the Company sold an
aggregate of 6,096,448 common shares and realized net proceeds of $30,884,022 in its at-the-market offering.
On June 23, 2021, the Company entered into an underwriting agreement with respect to a firm commitment underwritten public offering of up to
1,955,000 shares (including 255,000 shares to cover overallotments) of the Company’s 7.75% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, par
value $0.001 per share (the “Series A Preferred Stock”), at a public offering price of $25.00 per share, equal to the liquidation preference (the “Series A
Offering”). The Series A Offering was made pursuant to a prospectus supplement, dated June 23, 2021, to the Company’s shelf registration statement on
Form S-3 declared effective by the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on June 17, 2021, and the base prospectus included in such
registration statement. On June 29, 2021, the Company consummated the sale of 1,700,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock for an aggregate purchase
price of $42.5 million. Another 203,000 shares were sold on July 2, 2021 after the Underwriters exercised their over-allotment option. Total gross
proceeds from the offering were $47.6 million and net proceeds from the sale, after paying underwriting discounts and commissions and other offering
expenses, were approximately $45.5 million. (See Note 14.)

12.

Partnership Investment
On February 22, 2021, the Company committed to a $3 million investment, representing approximately a 7.6% ownership interest as of the
commitment date, in a commercial real estate finance company that provides debt capital solutions to local and regional commercial real estate owners
in the Northeastern United States. As of September 30, 2021, the Company’s outstanding investment totaled approximately $ 1.8 million. The
Company’s withdrawal from the partnership may only be granted by the manager. For the nine months ended September 30, 2021, the Company earned
approximately $90,000 on the investment. The Company uses the cost method of accounting to account for this investment.

13.

Special Purpose Acquisition Corporation
On March 24, 2021, the Company loaned $25,000 to its wholly-owned subsidiary, Sachem Sponsor LLC. Sachem Sponsor LLC used those funds to
purchase 1,437,500 shares of Class B common stock of Sachem Acquisition Corp., a newly organized blank check company formed under the laws of
Maryland in February 2021 for the purpose of effecting a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase, reorganization or similar
business combination with one or more businesses. As of September 30, 2021, the Company had incurred approximately $281,000 of costs related to the
the preparation and filing of the registration statement, including legal fees, accounting fees and filing fees as well organizational costs and an expense
advance to the underwriter.
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On July 14, 2021, Sachem Acquisition Corp. filed a registration statement on Form S-1 registering the sale of 5,750,000 units at $10.00 per unit, or
$57,500,000 in the aggregate. Each unit consists of one share of Class A common stock and one-half of a warrant to purchase one share of Class A
common stock. The registration statement is currently under SEC review.
14.

Series A Preferred Stock
On June 25, 2021, the Company filed a Certificate of Amendment with the Department of State of the State of New York to designate 1,955,000
shares of the Company’s authorized preferred shares, par value $ 0.001 per share, as shares of Series A Preferred Stock with the powers, designations,
preferences and other rights as set forth therein (the “Certificate of Amendment”).
The Certificate of Amendment provides that the Company will pay quarterly cumulative dividends on the Series A Preferred Stock, in arrears, on
the 30th day of each of September, December, March and June from, and including, the date of original issuance of the Series A Preferred Stock at
7.75% of the $25.00 per share liquidation preference per annum (equivalent to $1.9375 per annum per share).
The Series A Preferred Stock will not be redeemable before June 29, 2026, except upon the occurrence of a Change of Control (as defined in the
Certificate of Amendment). On or after June 29, 2026, the Company may, at its option, redeem any or all of the shares of the Series A Preferred Stock at
$25.00 per share plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends to, but not including, the redemption date. Also, upon the occurrence of a Change of
Control, the Company may, at its option, redeem any or all of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock within 120 days after the first date on which such
Change of Control occurred at $25.00 per share plus any accumulated and unpaid dividends to, but not including, the redemption date. The Series A
Preferred Stock has no stated maturity, is not subject to any sinking fund or mandatory redemption and will remain outstanding indefinitely unless
repurchased or redeemed by the Company or converted into common shares in connection with a Change of Control by the holders of Series A Preferred
Stock.
Upon the occurrence of a Change of Control, each holder of Series A Preferred Stock will have the right (subject to the Company’s election to
redeem the Series A Preferred Stock in whole or in part, as described above, prior to the Change of Control Conversion Date (as defined in the
Certificate of Amendment) to convert some or all of the Series A Preferred Stock held by such holder on the Change of Control Conversion Date into a
number of the common shares per share of Series A Preferred Stock determined by formula, in each case, on the terms and subject to the conditions
described in the Certificate of Amendment, including provisions for the receipt, under specified circumstances, of alternative consideration as described
in the Certificate of Amendment.
Except under limited circumstances, holders of the Series A Preferred Stock generally do not have any voting rights.

15.

Subsequent Events
From October 1, 2021 through November 1, 2021, the Company sold 968,779 of its common shares in an at-the-market offering which raised
$5,411,273 in net proceeds. (See Note 11.)
On October 13, 2021, the board of directors declared a dividend of $0.12 per common share payable on October 29, 2021 to shareholders of record
as of October 25, 2021.
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16. COVID-19
The COVID-19 pandemic has resulted in a widespread health crisis that has adversely affected the economies and financial markets worldwide and
has materially and adversely affected many businesses and as of September 30, 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic is ongoing. In response to the onset of
the COVID-19 pandemic and the restrictions imposed by various states, including the States of Connecticut, Florida and New York to prevent, or at least
reduce the risk of the spread of the virus, at the end of the first quarter of 2020 the Company adopted certain temporary programs, policies and
guidelines designed primarily to preserve its liquidity, help its borrowers and protect its employees. In particular, the Company invested capital into its
technology infrastructure over the course of 2020 and into 2021 to allow its employees to work remotely and remain effective in the event of office
shutdowns.
Over the course of 2020 and into early 2021, the U.S. Congress has authorized over $4.0 trillion of stimulus payments to small businesses and
individuals adversely impacted by COVID-19. In addition, the Federal Reserve Board has maintained its accommodative monetary policy. Finally, since
December 2020, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA”) has issued emergency use authorizations for three COVID-19 vaccines. The
combination of these factors – stimulus, monetary easing and vaccination roll-out, appears to have had positive impact on general economic conditions.
As a result, real estate values have stabilized and the Company has not experienced any significant increase in defaults.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, there are still concerns regarding mutations of the virus that might not be susceptible to the existing vaccines and
there is still a significant portion of the worldwide population, including in the U.S., that is not vaccinated. In addition, the COVID-19 pandemic has
exposed certain vulnerabilities in the U.S. economy that could materially and adversely impact our borrowers and, by extension the Company. These
vulnerabilities include a labor shortage and supply chain disruptions, particularly with respect to building materials and appliances. If continuing
concerns relating to the COVID-19 pandemic limit our ability to have meetings with potential borrowers, or our borrower’s ability to source materials
and services to complete construction in process, the Company’s business and operations could be adversely impacted. The extent to which COVID-19
impacts the Company’s business and operations will depend on future developments, which are highly uncertain and cannot be predicted, including new
information which may emerge concerning the severity of COVID-19 and the actions to contain COVID-19 or treat its impact, among others. If the
disruptions posed by COVID-19 or other matters of global concern continue for an extensive period of time, the Company’s business, operations and
financial condition may be materially adversely affected.
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Item 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following discussion of the financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with the financial statements and the
notes to those statements included elsewhere in this report. Certain statements in this discussion and elsewhere in this report constitute forward-looking
statements, within the meaning of section 21E of the Exchange Act, that involve risks and uncertainties. The actual results may differ materially from those
anticipated in these forward-looking statements.
Company Overview
We are a Connecticut-based real estate finance company that specializes in originating, underwriting, funding, servicing and managing a portfolio
of short-term (i.e., three years or less) loans secured by first mortgage liens on real property. From our inception, in December 2010, through our initial
public offering, in February 2017, we operated as a limited liability company. On February 9, 2017, we completed our initial public offering (the “IPO”),
the primary purpose of which was to raise equity capital to fund mortgage loans and expand our mortgage loan portfolio and to diversify our ownership so
that we could qualify, for federal income tax purposes, as a real estate investment trust, or REIT.
We believe that, since consummation of the IPO, we met all the requirements to qualify as a REIT for federal income tax purposes and elected to
be taxed as a REIT beginning with our 2017 tax year. As a REIT, we are entitled to claim deductions for distributions of taxable income to our shareholders
thereby eliminating any corporate tax on such taxable income. Any taxable income not distributed to shareholders is subject to tax at the regular corporate
tax rates and may also be subject to a 4% excise tax to the extent it exceeds 10% of our total taxable income. To maintain our qualification as a REIT, we
are required to distribute each year at least 90% of our taxable income. As a REIT, we may also be subject to federal excise taxes and state taxes.
Market Opportunity
Notwithstanding the spread of the novel corona virus known as COVID-19, which had a severe adverse impact on certain segments of the U.S.
and global economy, its impact on our business was negligible. Even now, as concerns mount over the impact that the Delta variant of the virus will have on
the global economic recovery, we believe that there will continue to be a significant market opportunity for a well-capitalized “hard money” lender to
originate attractively priced loans to small-scale real estate developers with strong equity positions (i.e., good collateral), particularly in Connecticut where,
traditionally, real estate values in many neighborhoods have been stable and substandard properties are improved, rehabilitated and renovated. We further
believe that there are many opportunities for us to expand our business into new markets. We also believe developers will prefer to borrow from us rather
than other lending sources because of our flexibility in structuring loans to suit their needs, our lending criteria, which places greater emphasis on the value
of the collateral rather than the property cash flow or credit of the borrower, and our ability to close quickly.
Review of the first Nine Months of 2021 and Outlook for Balance of Year
Compared to the first nine months of 2020, revenue increased 62.5%, net income to common shareholders increased 21.9%, and earnings per
share increased $0.02 per share. The revenue increase was directly related to an increase in interest income of 58.8%, which reflects growth in our lending
activities. The increase in revenue was offset by an 90.6% increase in total operating costs and expenses. The increase in operating expenses is mainly
attributable to a 111.6% increase in interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs and a 76.5% increase in compensation and related
expenses. The increase in compensation expense is mainly attributable to the addition of a Chief Operating Officer in July 2020 and a Chief Investment
Officer in April 2021, positions that are part of our long-term growth strategy. In addition, we added support staff in our operations and finance teams to
assist in the servicing of our loan portfolio. The increase in net income to common shareholders was generally related to the growth in our loan portfolio
and significant origination fee income. Mortgages receivable increased by 77.2% or $95.8 million compared to September 30, 2020, while cash and cash
equivalents and investment securities increased 127.7% or $42.3 million. The increase in cash and cash equivalents and investment securities was due
primarily to $30.9 million of net proceeds from the sale of common shares, and $45.5 million of net proceeds from the sale of our 7.75% Series A
Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Series A Preferred Stock”).
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Our primary business objective remains to grow our loan portfolio while protecting and preserving capital in a manner that provides for attractive
risk-adjusted returns to our shareholders over the long term principally through dividends. We intend to achieve this objective by accelerating profitable
growth and driving operational excellence. To accelerate profitable growth, we will continue to focus on selectively originating, managing, and servicing a
portfolio of first mortgage real estate loans designed to generate attractive risk-adjusted returns across a variety of market conditions and economic cycles.
We are also targeting larger-value commercial loans with strong, experienced sponsors. To drive operational excellence, we have embarked on a broad
change management initiative to review, assess, and upgrade – or transform if necessary – our existing operational processes, from workflows and
employee roles/responsibilities to decision trees and data collection forms. To that end, in the third quarter of 2021 we rolled out a new underwriting model
that autmotated the production of our loan documentation – term sheets, proof of funds, etc. The automation allows for more accurate and timely processing
of loans, thus increasing loan production while keeping our employee headcount down. In addition, we have focused on developing relationships with
larger scale wholesale brokers, furthering our efforts to attract larger borrowers with better credit quality. We believe that our ability to react quickly to the
needs of borrowers, our flexibility in terms of structuring loans to meet the needs of borrowers, our knowledge of the primary real estate markets we lend
in, our expertise in “hard money” lending and our focus on newly originated first mortgage loans, should enable us to achieve our primary objective.
Nevertheless, we remain flexible to take advantage of other real estate opportunities that may arise from time to time, whether they relate to the mortgage
market or to direct or indirect investments in real estate.
Our strategy to achieve this objective also includes the following:
●

capitalize on opportunities created by the long-term structural changes in the real estate lending market and the continuing lack of
liquidity in the commercial and investment real estate markets;

●

take advantage of the prevailing economic environment and current economic, political and social trends that may impact real estate
lending, as well as the outlook for real estate in general and particular asset classes;

●

remain flexible to capitalize on changing sets of investment opportunities that may be present in the various points of an economic
cycle; and

●

operate to qualify as a REIT and for an exemption from registration under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or the
Investment Company Act.

In terms of our outlook for the remainder of 2021, the biggest challenge remains the unknown impact of COVID-19 and future actions that may
be taken to contain the spread of COVID-19. Keeping our workforce healthy and safe is our number one priority and we are following the updated
guidelines and recommendations issued by the State of Connecticut and Centers for Disease Control. We continue to encourage employees to stay home
when sick and encourage working from home when possible. In the event of a positive COVID-19 test result, Sachem employees inform management and
follow state testing and contact tracing protocols. We have not been immune to the virus striking our employees and their family members. Fortunately,
none of these occurrences has been life-threatening. However, to mitigate the risk of office closure and to ensure business continuity, our employees are
equipped so they can seamlessly work remotely. This remote work set-up has proven to be effective since, at times during the pandemic, employees had to
self-isolate based on their own health condition or that of an immediate family member. While loan processing and funding may have been marginally
delayed, there was no material adverse impact to the service levels we provided our borrowers.
In the event we are forced to close our physical office, we think it likely that there would be some adverse impact. For example, the underwriting
process would continue to function but would take longer to complete without immediate access to background and credit profiles. Loan committee
meetings would continue to be held virtually (as they are under normal conditions) but the loan approval process may incur delay or not be as thorough and
efficient as in the past. In addition, we may not be able to meet with borrowers or potential borrowers, including physical property inspections, which could
adversely impact our ability to service our loans, monitor compliance and originate new loans. Finally, the filing of loan documents with the various
recording offices may be delayed.
In summary, the consequences may include one or more of the following:
●

increase the amount of time necessary to review loan applications, structure loans and fund loans;

●

adversely impact the ability of borrowers to remain current on their obligations;
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●

reduce the rate of prepayments;

●

delay the completion of renovation projects in-process;

●

inhibit the ability of borrowers to sell their properties to repay their obligation to us; and

●

delay foreclosure or other judicial proceedings necessary to enforce our rights.

Other factors that we believe will impact our business for the remainder of 2021 include the following:
Increased competition. In the past, our primary competitors were other non-bank real estate finance companies (similar to Sachem Capital Corp.)
and banks and other financial institutions. Our principal competitive advantages included our size and our ability to address the needs of borrowers in terms
of timing and structuring loan transactions. More recently, we are encountering competition from private equity funds, hedge funds and other specialty
finance entities funded by investment banks, asset managers, private equity funds and hedge funds. Clearly, the primary driver for these new market
participants is the need to generate yield. They are well-funded and aggressive in terms of pricing.
Borrower expectations. The new competitive landscape is shifting the negotiating leverage in favor of borrowers.As borrowers have more choices,
they are demanding better terms. As of September 30, 2021, the yield on our portfolio was 11.92% compared to 12.28% for the same period in 2020. We
expect rate compression will continue for the balance of 2021.
Property value fluctuations. We remain aware of property value market cycles and utilize a dashboard of indicators to track property value trends.
Our response to this development would be to adhere to our strict loan-to-value ratio and other underwriting guidelines and aggressively enforce our rights
when loans go into default. By judiciously relying on our dashboard of leading indicators and continuing to make decisions in a sound and proper manner,
we see no reason to expect any negative outcome regarding our business operations and growth. Some of our indicators within our dashboard are interest
rate changes impacting mortgage rates, days-on-market, pending sales, NAHB’s Housing Market Index, and the Senior Loan Officer Opinion Survey,
among others.
Increased operating expenses. Our operating expenses for 2021 are significantly higher than they were in 2020 due to our higher debt load. In
addition, our dividend payments will be higher in 2021 than in 2020 due to an increase in the number of common shares outstanding as well as the issuance
of of our Series A Preferred Stock, which carries a 7.75% annual dividend rate. Finally, our compensation expense has increased as we hired new personnel
and increased salaries of existing employees to administer a larger loan portfolio and more complex loan transactions.
Unfunded commitments. Most of our loans are funded in full at closing. However, where all or a portion of the loan proceeds are to be used to fund
the costs of renovating or constructing improvements on the property, only a portion of the loan may be funded at closing. At September 30, 2021, our
mortgage loan portfolio included 157 loans with future funding obligations, in the aggregate principal amount of $61,707,185, compared to 105 loans in the
aggregate principal amount of $13,342,248 at September 30, 2020. The increase is due to an increase in construction loan originations, a large portion of
which is in the Florida market. Advances under these loans are funded against requests supported by all required documentation (including lien waivers) as
and when needed to pay contractors and other costs of construction. In order to deal with these obligations, we are compelled to maintain higher cash
balances, which could adversely impact our financial performance.
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Despite the challenges we faced in 2020, the changing dynamics of the real estate finance marketplace and the impact of COVID-19, we continue
to believe in the viability of our business model. Our goal is, and has always been, to continue to grow our mortgage loan portfolio and increase our loan
profitability, while at the same time maintain or improve on our existing underwriting and loan criteria. Specifically, we believe that the following factors
will, in fact, help us deal with the uncertainties expected in the remainder of 2021:
●

From January through September 30, 2021, we funded approximately $154.8 million of mortgage loans including loan modifications and
construction draws. The sources for these loans and draws included cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2020 (approximately $19.4
million), short term marketable securities at December 31, 2020 (approximately $37.3 million), net proceeds from the sale of our Series A
Preferred stock (approximately $45.5 million), net proceeds from the sale of common shares (approximately $30.9 million) and loan
repayments (approximately $90.5 million). As of September 30, 2021, we had cash and cash equivalents and investment securities of
approximately $75.3 million. We plan to use these funds during the remainder of 2021 to increase our mortgage loan portfolio. As of October
22, 2021 we had issued term sheets for new loans in the aggregate principal amount of approximately $75.6 million. Some of these loans may
never get funded for a variety of reasons. In addition, as of October 22, 2021, we had applications in-house for loans totaling approximately
$123.0 million. None of these loans have been approved and none may ever be approved.

●

Beginning in the second quarter of 2021, we significantly reduced our leverage, thereby mitigating the risks should economic conditions
deteriorate. At September 30, 2021, our capital structure was 49.3% debt and 50.7% equity compared to 63% debt and 37% equity at March
31, 2021. The change was accomplished by selling equity – common shares and preferred shares – rather than by reducing our indebtedness.
Our total indebtedness at September 30, 2021 was approximately $144.6 million, including deferred financing costs. Of this amount,
approximately $30.1 million is the outstanding balance on our credit facility with Wells Fargo, which is currently accruing interest at the
relatively modest rate of 1.5%. The remaining indebtedness, approximately $114.5 million, is the aggregate outstanding principal balance on
our unsubordinated unsecured notes, which have a weighted average interest rate of 7.36% per annum. On the other hand, the notes provide us
with operational flexibility. Other than interest, they do not have any significant costs and expenses, such as legal fees, collateral maintenance
fees, unused facility fees, processing fees and the additional personnel costs relating to reporting and compliance. Second, they only have one
financial covenant – an asset coverage ratio of 150%. There are no limitations in terms of the size of the mortgage loans we choose to fund, the
markets in which we choose to operate and the nature of the collateral. Finally, the notes are unsecured.

●

On July 21, 2021, we consummated a $200 million master repurchase financing facility (“Facility”) with Churchill MRA Funding I LLC
(“Churchill”), a subsidiary of Churchill Real Estate, a vertically integrated real estate finance company based in New York, New York. Under
the terms of the Master Repurchase Agreement entered into in connection with the Facility (the “MRA”), we have the right, but not the
obligation, to sell mortgage loans to Churchill, and Churchill has the right, but not the obligation, to purchase those loans. In addition, we have
the right and, in some instances the obligation, to repurchase those loans from Churchill. The amount that Churchill will pay for each mortgage
loan it purchases will vary based on the attributes of the loan and various other circumstances. The repurchase price is calculated by applying an
interest factor to the purchase price of the mortgage loan. We have also granted Churchill a first priority security interest on the mortgage loans
sold to Churchill to secure its repurchase obligation. The cost of capital under the Facility is equal to the sum of (a) the greater of (i) 0.25% and
(ii) the 30-day LIBOR plus (b) 3%-4%, depending on the aggregate principal amount of the mortgage loans held by Churchill at that time. The
MRA contains other terms and conditions, including representations and warranties, covenants and agreements typically found in these types of
financing arrangements. In addition, the Company has agreed that it will not (A) (i) pay any dividends or make distributions in excess of 90% of
its taxable income, (ii) incur any indebtedness or (iii) purchase any of its capital stock, unless, in any case, it has an asset coverage ratio of at
least 150%; and (B) has unencumbered cash and cash equivalents in an amount equal to or greater than 2.50% of the amount of its repurchase
obligations. Churchill has the right to terminate the Facility at any time upon 180 days prior notice to the Company. The Company then has an
additional 180 days after termination to repurchase all the mortgage loans held by Churchill. (See Note 6 to the attached financial statements.)

●

We have made the necessary adjustments to our operations to replace our former co-chief executive officer by hiring new employees and reassigning existing employees to new tasks. We now have a robust executive team that includes our chief executive and chief financial officer, a
chief operating officer and a chief investment officer. In addition, we have added junior executives as well in accounting and administration.
Although these new hires will result in increased compensation, they were and will continue to be necessary to accommodate our growth and to
maintain our ability to continue to service our borrowers and manage our business without sacrificing quality.
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●

We have adjusted and refined our business strategy to address changes in the marketplace and our growth to-date. Specifically, we continue to
strengthen our geographic footprint beyond Connecticut and the rest of New England with particular emphasis on Florida and Texas. In
addition to the aforementioned states, our current mortgage loan portfolio includes loans secured by properties in New York, Arizona, South
Carolina and California. We continue to look for opportunities in new markets that meet our underwriting and loan criteria.

●

We are funding larger loans than we have in the past that are secured by what we believe are higher-quality properties that are being developed
by borrowers that we deem to be more stable and successful. In addition, we believe the migration to these types of loans will offset any rate
compression and help us maintain a low foreclosure rate.

●

To leverage our expertise in real estate finance and our capital resources, on the one hand, and to capitalize on lending opportunities in specific
markets, on the other, we plan to partner and invest with local “hard money” real estate lenders creating satellite offices under the “Sachem”
influence. An advantage of this model is that these local lenders subscribe to a “Sachem” model using their own personal assets and those of
other investor partners to fund loan opportunities and operations which increases their capital commitment to the opportunity. Under these
arrangements, we would provide loan funding capital as well as our underwriting and servicing expertise and our local partners would provide
us with “boots on the ground” lending opportunities. We recently leased office space in Austin, Texas, which is manned by one of our
shareholders who lives in the area as well as a sales and marketing campaign, primarily via Google advertising, in the hopes of building a
robust pipeline to supplement our operator and to develop the Sachem brand in Texas. We also have had preliminary discussion with local
lenders in other markets, including Orlando, Florida, Greenwich, Connecticut, Charlotte, North Carolina and Atlanta, Georgia. We plan to
continue these discussions and scout other locations as well. However, we have not yet entered into any definitive agreements and we cannot
assure you that we will be able to consummate any such partnerships or joint ventures on terms that will be acceptable to all parties.

●

On March 24, 2021, we loaned $25,000 to our wholly-owned subsidiaiary, Sachem Sponsor LLC. Sachem Sponsor used those funds to
purchase 1,437,500 shares of Class B common stock of Sachem Acquisition Corp., a newly organized blank check company formed under the
laws of Maryland in February 2021 for the purpose of effecting a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition, stock purchase,
reorganization or similar business combination with one or more businesses. Sachem Acquisition Corp.’s registration statement on Form S-1 is
currently under SEC review.

Operational and Financial Overview
Our loans typically have a maximum initial term of one to three years and bear interest at a fixed rate of 5% to 14.2% per year and a default rate
of 18% per year. We usually receive origination fees, or “points,” ranging from 2% to 5% of the original principal amount of the loan as well as other fees
relating to underwriting, funding and managing the loan, such as inspection fees. Since we treat an extension or renewal of an existing loan as a new loan,
we also receive additional “points” and other loan-related fees in connection with those transactions. Interest is always payable monthly in arrears. As a
matter of policy, we do not make any loans if the loan-to value ratio exceeds 70%. In the case of construction loans, the loan-to-value ratio is based on the
post-construction value of the property. We rely on readily available market data, including appraisals when available or timely, tax assessment rolls, recent
sales transactions and brokers to evaluate the value of the collateral. Finally, we have adopted a policy that limits the maximum amount of any loan we fund
to a single borrower or a group of affiliated borrowers to 10% of the aggregate amount of our loan portfolio, taking into consideration the loan under
consideration, unless otherwise approved by our board of directors. At September 30, 2021, we had one borrower whose outstanding loans, in the aggregate
principal amount of $22.3 million, represented 10.2% of our mortgage loan portfolio. In addition, we had a second borrower with loans having an
aggregate outstanding principal amount of $10.0 million, which represented approximately 4.6% of our mortgage loan portfolio. However, our total
funding obligations to this borrower are approximately $23.4 million. On a fully funded basis, the total amount outstanding to this borrower would have
represented approximately 10.0% of our mortgage loan portfolio as of September 30, 2021. Our revenue consists primarily of interest earned on our loan
portfolio. As of March 31, 2021, our capital structure was weighted towards more debt versus equity and debt service has become a significant factor in
determining our net income. As of September 30, 2021 our capital structure shifted and is more balanced -- approximately 49.3% debt and 50.7% equity.
Most of our debt, approximately $114.5 million, is unsecured unsubordinated 5-year notes. The weighted average interest rate on these notes is 7.36%. In
addition, we had a balance of approximately $30.1 million at September 30, 2021 under our margin loan account with Wells Fargo. The outstanding
balance on this loan bears interest at a rate equal to 1.75% below the prime rate. The interest rate on this loan as of September 30, 2021 was 1.5%.
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In addition, our net income for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2021 has been adversely impacted by a reduction in the yield on
our mortgage loan portfolio as well as $90.4 million of loan payoffs during the nine month period compared to $55 million for all of 2020. In the first nine
months of 2021, we realized faster payoff of investment “fix and flip” loans with these projects coming to fruition quicker due to a stronger real estate
market and, we believe, our sound underwriting and analysis of each project. The velocity with which our loans are paid off reflects the health of our
portfolio. Despite these payoffs, we were able to redeploy the capital into new loans, boosting the yield to our shareholders by recognizing origination fees
over shorter durations than originally underwritten. Our strategy continues to be to adhere to our current underwriting guidelines, which we believe will
allow us to continue to grow our loan portfolio while protecting and preserving capital in a manner that provides attracted risk-adjusted returns to our
shareholders.
For the nine months ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, the yield on our mortgage loan portfolio was 11.92% and 12.28%, respectively. For this
purpose, yield only takes into account the stated interest rate on the mortgage note adjusted to the default rate, if applicable. We believe the interest rate
compression will continue to be a factor for the remainder of 2021 as we implement our new strategy focusing on larger loans, secured by higher quality
properties being developed by more seasoned developers with a history of successful development projects. On the other hand, since the interest rate on our
outstanding indebtedness is fixed, we have reduced the risk on interest rate compression if and when interest rates begin to increase. That will enable us to
continue to focus on growth and building market share rather than short-term profits and cash flow.
We seek to mitigate some of the risk associated with rising rates by limiting the term of new loans to one year. At September 30, 2021,
approximately 87.6% of the mortgage loans in our portfolio had a term of one year or less. If, at the end of the term, the loan is not in default and meets our
other underwriting criteria, we will consider an extension or renewal of the loan at our then prevailing interest rate. If interest rates have decreased and we
renew a loan at a lower rate, the “spread” between our borrowing costs and the yield on our portfolio will be squeezed and would adversely impact our net
income. We cannot assure you that we will be able to increase our rates at any time in the future and we cannot assure you that we can continue to increase
our market share.
As a real estate finance company, we deal with a variety of default situations, including breaches of covenants, such as the obligation of the
borrower to maintain adequate liability insurance on the mortgaged property, to pay the taxes on the property and to make timely payments to us. As such,
we may not be aware that a default occurred. At September 30, 2021, eight of our mortgage loans were the subject of enforcement or collection
proceedings. The aggregate amount due on these loans, including principal, unpaid accrued interest and borrower charges, was approximately $892,000,
representing approximately 0.4% of our aggregate mortgage loan portfolio. In the case of each of these loans, we have determined the value of the collateral
exceeds the aggregate amount due. To date, the aggregate amount of realized losses on our loan portfolio have been de minimis.
Financing Strategy Overview
To continue to grow our business, we must increase the size of our loan portfolio, which requires that we use our existing working capital to fund
new loans and raise additional capital either by selling shares of our capital stock or by incurring additional indebtedness. We do not have a policy limiting
the amount of indebtedness that we may incur. Thus, our operating income in the future will depend on how much debt we incur and the spread between
our cost of funds and the yield on our loan portfolio. Rising interest rates could have an adverse impact on our business if we cannot increase the rates on
our loans to offset the increase in our cost of funds and to satisfy investor demand for yield. In addition, rapidly rising interest rates could have an unsettling
effect on real estate values, which could compromise some of our collateral.
In June 2021 and July 2021, we raised aggregate net proceeds of approximately $45.5 million (after deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions and offering expenses) from the sale of 1,903,000 shares of our Series A Preferred Stock in the Series A Offering (defined below) as
described in Liquidity and Capital Resources below and Notes 11 and 14 to the accompanying financial statements. The Series A Preferred Stock is listed
on the NYSE American and began trading under the symbol “SACHPRA” on July 6, 2021.
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We do not have any formal policy limiting the amount of indebtedness we may incur. Depending on various factors we may, in the future, decide
to take on additional debt to expand our mortgage loan origination activities to increase the potential returns to our shareholders. Although we have no preset guidelines in terms of leverage ratio, the amount of leverage we will deploy will depend on our assessment of a variety of factors, which may include the
liquidity of the real estate market in which most of our collateral is located, employment rates, general economic conditions, the cost of funds relative to the
yield curve, the potential for losses and extension risk in our portfolio, the gap between the duration of our assets and liabilities, our opinion regarding the
creditworthiness of our borrowers, the value of the collateral underlying our portfolio, and our outlook for interest rates and property values. At September
30, 2021, debt represented approximately 49.3% of our total capital. To grow the business and satisfy the requirement to pay out 90% of net profits, starting
in June 2019 we gradually raised our debt level from 41.7% to as much as 63.0% of our total capital in the second quarter of 2021. We intend to maintain a
modest amount of leverage for the sole purpose of financing our portfolio and not for speculating on changes in interest rates.
Our total outstanding indebtedness at September 30, 2021 was approximately $144.6 million, which included a credit line loan of approximately
$30.1 million and three series of unsecured, unsubordinated five-year notes having an aggregate original principal amount of approximately $114.5 million
(collectively, the “Notes”), including deferred financing costs. The Notes include notes having an aggregate principal amount of approximately $23.7
million bearing interest at the rate of 7.125% per annum and have a maturity date of June 30, 2024 (the “June 2024 Notes”); notes having an aggregate
principal amount of $34.5 million bearing interest at the rate of 6.875% per annum and have a maturity date of December 30, 2024 (the “December 2024
Notes”); and notes having an aggregate original principal amount of approximately $56.4 million, bearing interest at the rate of 7.75% per annum and have
a maturity date of September 30, 2025 (the “2025 Notes”). All three series of Notes are unsecured, unsubordinated obligations and rank equally in right of
payment with all our existing and future senior unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness but are effectively subordinated in right of payment to all our
existing and future secured indebtedness (including indebtedness that is initially unsecured but to which we subsequently grant a security interest). Interest
on all three series of Notes is payable quarterly in arrears on March 30, June 30, September 30 and December 30 of each year the Notes are outstanding.
Each series of Notes was issued pursuant to the Indenture, dated June 21, 2019, and a supplement thereto, which provides for the form and terms,
including default provisions and cures, applicable to each series. All three series of Notes are subject to (i) “Defeasance,” which means that, by depositing
with a trustee an amount of cash and/or government securities sufficient to pay all principal and interest, if any, on such notes when due and satisfying any
additional conditions required under the Indenture, we will be deemed to have been discharged from our obligations under such notes and (ii) an “Asset
Coverage Ratio” requirement pursuant to which we may not pay any dividends or make distributions in excess of 90% of our taxable income, incur any
indebtedness or purchase any shares of our capital stock unless we have an “Asset Coverage Ratio” of at least 150% after giving effect to the payment of
such dividend, the making of such distribution or the incurrence of such indebtedness. “Asset Coverage Ratio” means the ratio (expressed as a percentage)
of the value of our total assets relative to the aggregate amount of its indebtedness.
We may, at our option, at any time and from time to time, on or after June 30, 2021, in the case of the June 2024 Notes, November 7, 2021, in the
case of the December 2024 Notes, and September 4, 2022, in the case of the 2025 Notes, redeem such notes, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal
to 100% of the outstanding principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest to, but excluding, the date fixed for redemption. On and after any
redemption date, interest will cease to accrue on the redeemed notes.
All three series of Notes trade on the NYSE American. The June 2024 Notes trade under the symbol “SCCB”, the December 2024 Notes trade
under the symbol “SACC” and the 2025 Notes trade under the symbol “SCCC”.
We have a margin loan account with Wells Fargo, which is secured by our portfolio of short-term securities and has a balance of approximately
$30.1 million at September 30, 2021. The outstanding balance on this loan bears interest at a rate equal to 1.75% below the prime rate. The interest rate at
September 30, 2021 is 1.5%.
On July 21, 2021, we consummated a $200 million Facility with Churchill, a subsidiary of Churchill Real Estate, a vertically integrated real estate
finance company based in New York, New York. Under the terms of the Facility, we have the right, but not the obligation, to sell mortgage loans to
Churchill, and Churchill has the right, but not the obligation, to purchase those loans. The cost of capital under the Facility is equal to the sum of (a) the
greater of (i) 0.25% and (ii) the 30-dayLIBOR plus (b) 3%-4%, depending on the aggregate principal amount of the mortgage loans held by Churchill at
that time. Our obligations under the Facility are secured by a lien on the mortgage loans sold to Churchill. The Facility gives us the ability to raise capital as
needed at a relatively low rate. It also gives us the flexibility to seek other sources of funding. (See above and Note 6 to the attached financial statements.)
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REIT Qualification
We believe that we have qualified as a REIT since the consummation of the IPO and that it is in the best interests of our shareholders that we
operate as a REIT. We made the election to be taxed as a REIT beginning with our 2017 tax year. As a REIT, we are required to distribute at least 90% of
our taxable income to our shareholders on an annual basis. We cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain REIT status.
Our qualification as a REIT depends on our ability to meet on a continuing basis, through actual investment and operating results, various complex
requirements under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, relating to, among other things, the sources of our gross income, the composition and
values of our assets, our compliance with the distributions requirements applicable to REITs and the diversity of ownership of our outstanding common
shares. We cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain our qualification as a REIT.
So long as we qualify as a REIT, we, generally, will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax on our taxable income that we distribute currently to
our shareholders. If we fail to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year and do not qualify for certain statutory relief provisions, we will be subject to U.S.
federal income tax at regular corporate income tax rates and may be precluded from electing to be treated as a REIT for four taxable years following
the year during which we lose our REIT qualification. Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may be subject to certain U.S. federal, state and local
taxes on our income.
Emerging Growth Company Status
We are an “emerging growth company”, as defined in the JOBS Act, and, for as long as we continue to be an emerging growth company, we may
choose to take advantage of exemptions from various reporting requirements not applicable to other public companies but applicable to emerging growth
companies, including, but not limited to, not being required to have our independent registered public accounting firm audit our internal control over
financial reporting under Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports
and proxy statements and exemptions from the requirements of holding a nonbinding advisory vote on executive compensation and shareholder approval of
any golden parachute payments not previously approved. As an emerging growth company, we can also delay adopting new or revised accounting
standards until those standards apply to private companies. We intend to avail ourselves of these options. Once adopted, we must continue to report on that
basis until we no longer qualify as an emerging growth company.
We will cease to be an emerging growth company upon the earliest of: (i) the end of the 2022 fiscal year; (ii) the first fiscal year after our annual
gross revenue are $1.07 billion or more; (iii) the date on which we have, during the previous three-year period, issued more than $1.0 billion in nonconvertible debt securities; or (iv) the end of any fiscal year in which the market value of our common shares held by non-affiliates exceeded $700 million
as of the end of the second quarter of that fiscal year. We cannot predict if investors will find our common shares less attractive if we choose to rely on these
exemptions. If, as a result of our decision to reduce future disclosure, investors find our common shares less attractive, there may be a less active trading
market for our common shares and the price of our common shares may be more volatile.
As an “emerging growth company,” we intend to avail ourselves of the reduced disclosure requirements and extended transition periods for
adopting new or revised accounting standards that would otherwise apply to us as a public reporting company. Once adopted, we must continue to report on
that basis until we no longer qualify as an emerging growth company. As a result, our financial statements may not be comparable to those of other public
reporting companies that either are not emerging growth companies or that are emerging growth companies but have opted not to avail themselves of the
reduced disclosure requirements for emerging growth companies and investors may deem our securities a less attractive investment relative to those other
companies, which could adversely affect our stock price.
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Results of Operations
Three months ended September 30, 2021 compared to three months ended September 30, 2020
Total revenue
Total revenue for the three months ended September 30, 2021 was approximately $8.5 million compared to approximately $4.3 million for the
three months ended September 30, 2020, an increase of approximately $4.3 million, or 99.5%. The increase in revenue is primarily attributable to the
growth in our lending operations as a direct result of our receipt of approximately $45.5 million from the sale of the the Series A Preferred Stock as well as
the velocity at which existing loans are repaid and our ability to quickly recycle those proceeds into new loans and generate new origination fees. For the
2021 period, interest income was approximately $6.1 million compared to approximately $3.5 million for the 2020 period, representing an increase of
approximately $2.6 million or 75.5%. Origination fees increased to approximately $999,300 for the 2021 period compared to approximately $393,100 for
the 2020 period. Investment income for the 2021 period was approximately $275,700 compared to approximately $32,500 for the 2020 period. This increase
reflects reflects both a larger investment portfolio and more favorable market conditions during 2021. In the 2021 period we had approximately $256,400 of
gains from the sale of investment securities compared to a loss of approximately $22,000 for the 2020 period. Other income was approximately $579,700
for the 2021 period compared to approximately $337,000 for the 2020 period, an increase of approximately $242,900, or 72.1%.
Operating costs and expenses
Total operating costs and expenses for three months ended September 30, 2021 were approximately $4.2 million compared to approximately $2.1
million for the three months ended September 30, 2020, an increase of approximately $2.1 million or 97.9%. The increase in operating costs and expenses
is primarily attributable to the increase in interest expense and amortization of deferred financing costs, which, in turn, is a direct result of an increase in our
overall indebtedness, particularly our unsubordinated unsecured notes. At September 30, 2021, total indebtedness was approximately $144.6 million and
the aggregate outstanding principal amount of our notes was approximately $114.5 million (including deferred financing costs). In comparison, at
September 30, 2020, the corresponding amounts were approximately $84.6 million and $72.5 million, respectively. In the 2021 period, interest and
amortization of deferred financing costs was approximately $2.6 million compared to approximately $1.3 million in the same 2020 period, an increase of
approximately $1.3 million, or 105.2%. The balance of the increase in operating expenses was attributable to (i) professional fees, which increased
approximately $25,300, or 16.0%, (ii) compensation, fees and taxes which increased approximately $271,200, or 54.2%, (iii) general and administrative
expenses which increased approximately $149,700, or 103.1%, an impairment loss of approximately $150,000 and an increase in the loss on sale of real
estate of approximately $91,600. In November 2019 one of our co-chief executive officers and our director of marketing resigned, which reduced our
compensation expense in the three months ended September 30, 2020. Since July 2020, we hired a chief operating officer, chief investment officer and
junior executives in accounting and administration, which resulted in increased compensation for the three and nine month periods ended September 30,
2021.
Comprehensive income
For the quarter ended September 30, 2021, we reported an unrealized loss on investment securities of approximately $500,000 reflecting the
decrease in the market value of such securities since June 30, 2021. For the quarter ended September 30, 2020, we reported an unrealized loss on
investment securities of approximately $73,000 reflecting the decrease in the market value of such securities since June 30, 2020.
Net Income
Net income attributable to common shareholders for the three months ended September 30, 2021 was approximately $3.4 million, or $0.12 per
share, compared to approximately $2.1 million, or $0.10 per share for the three months ended September 30, 2020.
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Nine months ended September 30, 2021 compared to nine months ended September 30, 2020
Total revenue
Total revenue for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 was approximately $20.9 million compared to approximately $12.9 million for the
nine months ended September 30, 2020, an increase of approximately $8.1 million, or 62.5%. The increase in revenue is primarily attributable to the growth
in our lending operations. For the 2021 period, interest income was approximately $15.3 million compared to approximately $9.6 million for the 2020
period, representing an increase of approximately $5.7 million or 58.8%. Origination fees increased to approximately $2.3 million for the 2021 period
compared to approximately $1.6 million for the 2020 period. Investment income increased to approximately $699,000 for the 2021 period compared to
approximately $163,000 for the 2020 period due to our larger investment portfolio and more favorable market conditions during 2021. Net gain on the sale
of investment securities was approximately $212,000 for the 2021 period compared to net gains of approximately $415,000 for the 2020 period. Other
income was approximately $1.6 million for the 2021 period compared to approximately $904,000 for the 2020 period, an increase of approximately
$676,000, or 74.8%. Finally, in the 2021 period we recognized gain on the forgiveness of debt of approximately $257,800.
Operating costs and expenses
Total operating costs and expenses for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 were approximately $11.9 million compared to approximately
$6.3 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2020, an increase of approximately 90.6%. The increase in operating costs and expenses is primarily
attributable to the increase in our unsecured bond debt while growing our lending operations and for the reasons discussed herein. In the 2021 period,
interest and amortization of deferred financing costs was approximately $7.5 million compared to approximately $3.6 million in the same 2020 period, an
increase of approximately $4.0 million, or 111.6%. The balance of the increase in operating expenses was attributable to (i) professional fees, which
increased approximately $266,000, or 66.2%, (ii) compensation, fees and taxes which increased approximately $943,000, or 76.5%, (iii) general and
administrative expenses which increased approximately $290,000, or 70.3% and (iv) an increase in the loss on sale of real estate of approximately $104,000.
In November 2019 one of our co-chief executive officers and our director of marketing resigned, which reduced our compensation expense in the nine
months ended September 30, 2020. Since July of 2020, we hired a chief operating officer, chief investment officer and junior executives in accounting and
administration, which resulted in increased compensation for the nine month periods ended September 30, 2021.
Comprehensive income
For the nine months ended September 30, 2021, we reported an unrealized loss on investment securities of approximately $612,000 reflecting the
decrease in the market value of such securities since December 31, 2020. For the nine months ended September 30, 2020, we reported an unrealized gain
on investment securities of approximately $13,282 reflecting the increase in the market value of such securities since December 31, 2019.
Net Income
Net income attributable to common shareholders for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 was approximately $8.1 million, or $0.32 per
share, compared to $6.6 million, or $0.30 per share for the nine months ended September 30, 2020.
Liquidity and Capital Resources
At September 30, 2021, cash and cash equivalents and investment securities totaled approximately $75.3 million compared to approximately $56.7
million at December 31, 2020. This increase is attributable to approximately $45.5 million of net proceeds from our Series A Offering (defined below) as
well as common stock issuances.
Total assets at September 30, 2021 were approximately $313.4 million compared to approximately $226.7 million at December 31, 2020, an
increase of approximately $86.7 million, or 38.2%. The increase was due primarily to an increase in cash and cash equivalents and investment securities of
approximately $18.6 million, our mortgage loan portfolio of approximately $64.3 million, investment in partnership of approximately $1.8 million, a net
increase in property and equipment of approximately $756,000, and increases in due from borrowers of approximately $1.4 million and interest and fees
receivable of approximately $885,000, offset by a decrease in real estate owned of approximately $2.1 million.The increase in property and equipment is
due to the purchase of an office building in Branford, Connecticut that we expect to become our new corporate headquarters in 2022.
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Total liabilities at September 30, 2021 were approximately $154.6 million compared to approximately $145.8 million at December 31, 2020, an
increase of approximately $8.8 million, or approximately 6.1%. This increase is principally due to an increase in our line of credit of approximately $2.0
million, advances from borrowers of approximately $8.2 million (of which a majority represented prepaid interest), and deferred revenue of approximately
$1.8 million, offset by decrease in dividends payable of approximately $2.7 million, mortgage payable of approximately $768,000, other loans of
approximately $258,000, and accounts payable and accrued expenses of approximately $180,000.
Total shareholders’ equity at September 30, 2021 was approximately $158.8 million compared to approximately $80.9 million at December 31,
2020, an increase of approximately $77.8 million. This increase was due primarily to our closing of the Series A Offering on June 29, 2021 and the partial
exercise of the overallotment option to purchase an additional 203,000 shares of Series A Preferred Stock with aggregate net proceeds of approximately
$45.5 million, net proceeds of approximately $30.9 million from the sale of stock and our net income to common shareholders of approximately $8.1
million.
Net cash provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 was approximately $17.3 million compared to
approximately $7.4 million for same 2020 period. For the 2021 period net cash provided by operating activities consisted primarily of net income of
approximately $9.0 million, amortization of deferred financing costs and bond discount of approximately $839,400, an impairment loss of approximately
$469,000, increase in deferred revenue of approximately $1.8 million, and an increase in advances from borrowers of approximately $8.2 million, offset by
a gain on sale of marketable securities of approximately $212,400 and a gain on forgiveness of debt of approximately $257,800, and an increase in interest
and fees receivable of approximately $885,400, other receivables of approximately $361,000 and due from borrowers of approximately $1.4 million. For
the 2020 period net cash from operations consisted primarily of net income of approximately $6.6 million, an impairment loss of $495,000, depreciation
and amortization of deferred financing cost of approximately $357,500, an increase in advances from borrowers of approximately $565,700, and accounts
payable and accrued expenses of approximately $272,600, offset by a realized gain on investments of approximately $415,300, increases in interest and fees
receivable of approximately $180,300, amounts due from borrowers of approximately $273,200, and prepaid expenses of approximately $82,100, and a
decrease in deferred revenue of approximately $91,000.
Net cash used for investing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 was approximately $85.0 million compared to approximately
$41.4 million for the comparable 2020 period. For the 2021 period, net cash used for investing activities consisted primarily of net principal disbursements
for mortgages receivable of approximately $64.3 million, purchase of an interest in investment partnership of approximately $1.8 million, net purchases of
investment securities of approximately $19.2 million, acquisitions of and improvements to real estate owned of approximately $333,400, purchase of
property and equipment of approximately $817,800 and costs in connections with investment activities of approximately $281,000, offset by proceeds from
the sale of real estate owned of approximately $1.8 million. For the 2020 period, net cash used for investing activities consisted primarily of net principal
disbursements for mortgages receivable of approximately $30.2 million, net purchases of investment securities of approximately $11.3 million and the
purchase of property and equipment of approximately $118,000, and improvements to real estate owned of approximately $1.6 million, offset by proceeds
from the sale of real estate owned of $1.8 million.
Net cash provided by financing activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2021 was approximately $67.5 million compared to
approximately $20.5 million for the comparable 2020 period. Net cash provided by financing activities for the 2021 period consists principally of the net
proceeds from issuance of common shares of approximately $30.9 million, net proceeds from the issuance of preferred stock of approximately $45.5
million and proceeds from our line of credit of approximately $2.0 million, which increases were offset by dividends paid on common stock of
approximately $8.8 million, dividends paid on preferred stock of approximately $932,000, repayment of mortgage payable of approximately $768,000 and
financing costs incurred of approximately $451,000. Net cash provided by financing activities for the 2020 period consists principally of the net proceeds
from the issuance of fixed rate notes of approximately $14.4 million, proceeds from our line of credit of approximately $12.1 million and proceeds from
other loans of approximately $258,000, which were offset by dividends paid of approximately $5.3 million and the payment of financing costs of
approximately $852,000.
In June 2021 and July 2021, we raised aggregate net proceeds of approximately $45.5 million (after deducting underwriting discounts and
commissions and offering expenses) from the sale of an aggregate of 1,903,000 shares of our Series A Preferred Stock in a firm commitment underwritten
public offering at a public offering price of $25.00 per share, equal to the liquidation preference (the “Series A Offering”) as described in Notes 11 and 14
to the accompanying financial statements.
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On July 21, 2021, we consummated a $200 million Facility with Churchill, a subsidiary of Churchill Real Estate, a vertically integrated real estate
finance company based in New York, New York. Under the terms of the Facility, we have the right, but not the obligation, to sell mortgage loans to
Churchill, and Churchill has the right, but not the obligation, to purchase those loans. We intend to use the proceeds from the Facility to finance the
continued expansion of our lending business and for general corporate purposes. (See above and Note 6 to the attached financial statements.)
We project anticipated cash requirements for our operating needs as well as cash flows generated from operating activities available to meet these
needs. Our short-term cash requirements primarily include funding of loans and payments for usual and customary operating and administrative expenses,
such as interest payments on notes payable, employee compensation, sales, marketing expenses and dividends. Based on this analysis, we believe that our
current cash balances and investment securities, and our anticipated cash flows from operations will be sufficient to fund the operations for the next 12
months.
Our long-term cash needs will include principal payments on outstanding indebtedness, preferred dividends and funding of new mortgage loans.
Funding for long-term cash needs will come from unused net proceeds from financing activities, operating cash flows and proceeds from sales of real estate
owned.
From and after the effective date of our REIT election, we intend to pay regular quarterly distributions to holders of our common shares in an
amount not less than 90% of our REIT taxable income (determined before the deduction for dividends paid and excluding any net capital gains).
Subsequent Events
From October 1, 2021 through November 1, 2021, we sold 968,779 common shares in an at-the-market offering (see Note 11) which raised
$5,411,273 in net proceeds.
On October 13, 2021, the board of directors declared a dividend of $0.12 per common share payable on October 29, 2021 to shareholders of
record as of October 25, 2021.
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We are not a party to any off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons that are
likely to affect liquidity or the availability of our requirements for capital resources.
Contractual Obligations
As of September 30, 2021, our contractual obligations include unfunded amounts of any outstanding construction loans and unfunded
commitments for loans as well as contractual obligations consisting of operating leases for equipment and software licenses.
Less than
1 year

Total

Operating lease obligation
Unfunded loan commitments
Total contractual obligations

$
$

6,044
61,707,185
61,713,229

$
$

4,393
61,707,185
61,711,578

1–3
years

$
$

1,651
—
1,651

3–5
years

$
$

More than
5 years

—
—
—

$
$

Critical Accounting Policies and Recent Accounting Pronouncements
See “Note 2 — Significant Accounting Policies” to the financial statements for explanation of recent accounting pronouncements impacting us
included elsewhere in this report and in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020.
Item 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
As a smaller reporting company, we are not required to provide the information required by this Item.
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Item 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
(a)

Evaluation and Disclosure Controls and
Procedures

Management, specifically our chief executive officer and chief financial officer (the same person), evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of September 30, 2021 (the “Evaluation Date”). Based
upon that evaluation, the chief executive officer and the chief financial officer (same person) concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, our disclosure
controls and procedures are effective to ensure that information required to be disclosed by us in the reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act
(i) are recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms and (ii) are accumulated and
communicated to management, specifically our chief executive officer and chief financial officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.
(b)

Changes in
Reporting

Internal

Control

Over

Financial

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) identified
in connection with the evaluation required by Rules 13a-15(d) or 15d-15(d) that occurred during the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2021 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION
Item

1A.

Risk Factors

We have two borrowers who each account for a significant portion of our loan portfolio.
We have various policies in place to reduce the risk to the company should a borrower default on its obligations to us. One of these policies prohibits
us from making loans to any single borrower or group of related borrowers if the total indebtedness of such borrower or borrowers would exceed ten
percent (10%) of our mortgage loan portfolio at that time, unless otherwise approved by our Board of Directors. At September 30, 2021, we had one
borrower whose outstanding loans, in the aggregate principal amount of $22.3 million, represented 10.2% of our mortgage loan portfolio. In addition, we
had a second borrower with loans having an aggregate outstanding principal amount of $10.0 million, which represented approximately 4.6% of our
mortgage loan portfolio. However, our total funding obligations to this borrower is approximately $23.4 million. On a fully funded basis, the total amount
outstanding to this borrower would have represented approximately 10.0% of our mortgage loan portfolio as of September 30, 2021. While neither
borrower is currently in default of its obligations to us and we believe that the loans to these borrowers are adequately secured, we cannot assure you that a
default by either of these borrowers would not have a material adverse impact on our business, operations and financial condition.
We have significant unfunded commitments to existing borrowers. If we are unable to fund these commitments, we may be subject to borrower legal
claims.
At September 30, 2021, we had unfunded commitments under existing loans of approximately $61.7 million. We do not record these unfunded
commitments as liabilities on our balance sheets as the unfunded portion of the loans are not included in the outstanding mortgage loan balances. We also
have not created a reserve for these unfunded commitments. However, we try to maintain a reasonable amount of working capital at all times, although not
in amounts sufficient to cover all our deferred funding obligations. In addition, we also have the ability to borrow funds against our portfolio of marketable
securities, although the value of these securities in our account fluctuate regularly based on our liquidity and demand for our loans. We also can raise capital
through the Churchill credit facility. Nevertheless, there is a possibility that demands for funding under existing loans could exceed our available working
capital and if we fail to meet our funding obligations, we may be subject to legal claims by the borrowers. This could have a material and adverse impact on
our business reputation, our operations as well as our financial condition.
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Item 6. EXHIBITS
Exhibit No.

2.1
3.1
3.1(a)
3.1(b)
3.1(c)
3.2
4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4
4.5
4.6
4.8
4.9
4.10
4.11
10.1**
10.2
10.3

Description

31.1
31.2
32.1
101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Form of Amended and Restated Exchange Agreement (1)
Certificate of Incorporation (1)
Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation (1)
Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation filed on October 7, 2019 (2)
Certificate of Amendment to Certificate of Incorporation filed on June 25, 2021 (11)
Amended and Restated Bylaws, effective as of November 25, 2019 (3)
Form of Representative’s Warrants issued on February 9, 2017 in connection with the initial public offering (1)
Form of Representatives’ Warrants issued on October 27, 2017 in connection with the follow-on underwritten public offering (4)
Indenture, dated as of June 21, 2019, between the Company and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (5)
First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 25, 2019, between the Company and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (5)
Form of 7.125% Notes due 2024 (5)
Second Supplemental Indenture between the Company and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (2)
Form of 6.875% Notes due 2024 (7)
Third Supplemental Indenture between the Company and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (9)
Form of 7.75% Notes due 2025 (included as Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.9 above)
Specimen 7.75% Series A Cumulative Redeemable Preferred Stock Certificate.(11)
Employment Agreement by and between John L. Villano and Sachem Capital Corp. (1)
Sachem Capital Corp. 2016 Equity Compensation Plan (1)
Final Form of the Restrictive Stock Grant Agreement dated July 17, 2018 under the Sachem Capital Corp. 2016 Equity Compensation Plan
between the Company and each of Leslie Bernhard, Arthur Goldberg and Brian Prinz (6)
Final Form of the Restrictive Stock Grant Agreement dated October 4, 2019 under the Sachem Capital Corp. 2016 Equity Compensation
Plan between the Company and each of Leslie Bernhard, Arthur Goldberg and Brian Prinz (2)
Employment Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2020, by and between Peter J. Cuozzo and Sachem Capital Corp. (8)
Final Form of the Restrictive Stock Grant Agreement dated April 2021 under the Sachem Capital Corp. 2016 Equity Compensation Plan
between the Company and each of John L., Villano and Peter J. Cuozzo. (10)
Master Repurchase Agreement and Securities Contract, dated as of July 21, 2021, between the Company and Churchill MRA Funding I
LLC. (12)
Custodial Agreement, dated as of July 21, 2021, among the Company, Churchill MRA Funding I LLC. and U.S. Bank National
Association. (12)
Chief Executive Officer Certification as required under section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act *
Chief Financial Officer Certification as required under section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act *
Chief Executive Officer Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. section 1350 as adopted pursuant to section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act ***
XBRL Instance Document *
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document *
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document *
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document *
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document *
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document *

104

Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)*

10.7
10.8**
10.9**
10.10
10.11

*

Filed
herewith.

** Compensation plan or arrangement for current or former executive officers and
directors.
*** Furnished, not filed, in accordance with item 601(32)(ii) of Regulation SK.
(1) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form S-11, as amended, (SEC File No.: 333-214323) and incorporated herein by
reference.
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(2) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference.
(3) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K on November 27, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference.
(4) Previously filed on October 20, 2017, as Exhibit A to Exhibit 1.1 of the Registration Statement on Form S-11, as amended, (SEC File No.: 333218954) and incorporated herein by reference.
(5) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K on June 25, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference.
(6) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2018 and incorporated herein by reference.
(7) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K on November 6, 2019 and incorporated herein by reference.
(8) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K on July 8, 2020 and incorporated herein by reference.
(9) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K on September 9, 2020 and incorporated herein by reference.
(10) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K on April 13, 2021 and incorporated herein by reference.
(11) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K on June 29, 2021 and incorporated herein by reference.
(12) Previously filed as an exhibit to the Current Report on Form 8-K on July 27, 2021 and incorporated herein by
reference.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.
SACHEM CAPITAL CORP.
By: /s/ John L. Villano
John L. Villano, CPA
President, Chief Executive Officer (Principal Executive
Officer) and Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial
Officer)

Date: November 3, 2021
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Exhibit 31.1
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification
I, John L. Villano, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Sachem Capital Corp.;

2.
Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3.
Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4.
The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:
(a)
Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b)
Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c)
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report, based on such evaluation; and
(d)
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5.
The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on the most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)
All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b)
Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.
Date: November 3, 2021
/s/ John L. Villano
John L. Villano, CPA
Chief Executive Officer and President
(Principal Executive Officer)
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Exhibit 31.2
Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification
I, John L. Villano, certify that:
1.

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Sachem Capital Corp.;

2.
Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;
3.
Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;
4.
The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for
the registrant and have:
(a)
Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;
(b)
Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;
(c)
Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report, based on such evaluation; and
(d)
Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially
affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and
5.
The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on the most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):
(a)
All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and
(b)
Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting.
Date: November 3, 2021
/s/ John L. Villano
John L. Villano, CPA
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)

Exhibit 31.2

Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
In connection with the quarterly report of Sachem Capital Corp. (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2021 as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, John L. Villano, President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:
(1)
(2)
Company

The Report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and
The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and result of operations of the

Dated: November 3, 2021
/s/ John L. Villano
John L. Villano, CPA
President, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Executive, Financial and Accounting Officer)
A signed original of this certification has been provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and furnished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission or its staff upon request.
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